

BY-LAWS
OF
“HEALTHY VISION ASSOCIATION “

ARTICLE I
PURPOSES

The purpose or purposes of "Healthy Vision Association" ("association") shall be:

To help members see well and be healthy by offering or providing access to educational information, services and products that promote vision health, overall health and wellness and other areas of interest by using the buying power of all members. To support charities that align with Association's purpose. To exercise all the powers conferred upon corporations formed under the Missouri Not-For-Profit Corporation Act.

ARTICLE II
OFFICES

The Association shall have and continuously maintain in this state a registered office and a registered agent, and the registered office of the association shall be identical with that of its registered agent. The Association may have other offices within or without the State of Missouri as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

ARTICLE III
MEMBERS

Section 1. Classes of Members. The Association shall have two (2) classes of members. The designation of such classes and qualifications of the members of such classes shall be as follows:

1. Individual membership: The individual is entitled to participate in all benefit programs offered by the Association.
2. Family membership: The member and his spouse are entitled to participate in all benefit programs offered by the Association.

Section 2. Voting Rights. Each member of classes 1 and 2 shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the members by the Board of Directors. Voting may be in person or by proxy; provided that no proxy may be used for voting purposes unless the original of the proxy is filed with the Secretary of the Association at least seven (7) days before the meeting at which it is to be used.

Section 3. Termination of Membership. Any member who shall be in default in the payment of dues for the period fixed in Article XI of the By-Laws is automatically ineligible for membership and loses all privileges and rights of the Association, subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors to extend such time period for the payment of dues.

Section 4. Resignation. Any member may resign by filing a written resignation with the Secretary, but such resignation shall not entitle such member to any refund of dues and the member shall immediately lose all privileges and rights of the Association.

Section 5. Reinstatement. Upon written reapplication a former member may be reinstated to membership in the Association.

Section 6. Transfer of Membership. Membership in the Association is not transferable or assignable.

ARTICLE IV MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the members of the Association shall be held for the purpose of electing Directors and the transaction of any other business as may come before the meeting. The date of the annual meeting shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Special Meeting. Special meetings of the members, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by law, may be called by the President and shall be called by the Secretary at the direction of a majority of the Board of Directors, or at the request in writing of members representing at least one hundred (100) votes entitled to be cast at such meeting.

Section 3. Place of Meeting. The Board of Directors may designate any place, within or without the State of Missouri as the place of meeting for any annual meeting. The President or the Board of Directors may designate any place within or without the State of Missouri as the place of the meeting for any special meeting. If no designation is made, the place of meeting shall be the registered office of the Association.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of any regular or special meeting of the Association members shall be delivered, either personally, by mail or through the internet, to each member, not less than seven (7) or more than forty (40) days before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the President, or Secretary, or the Board of Directors or person calling the meeting. In the case of special meetings, the purpose for which the

meeting is called shall be stated in the notice. If mailed, the notice of meeting shall be deemed delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at this address as it appears on the records of the Association, with postage thereon paid. Notice of meetings may be included in any publication that is distributed to the member.

Section 5. Quorum. There shall be no minimum number of members necessary to be present at any regular meeting or special meeting, in order to constitute a quorum. Those members present shall therefore constitute a quorum.

Section 6. Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the members present at any regular or special meeting shall constitute the act of the members.

Section 7. Informal Action by Members. Upon approval by the directors, any action required to be taken at a meeting of the members of the Association or any other action which may be taken at a meeting, may be taken without a meeting if consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by a majority of the members with respect to the subject matter thereof.

Section 8. Parliamentary Procedures. Parliamentary Procedure for all meetings of members, directors, and committees shall be conducted in accordance with the latest revised edition of Robert's Rules of Order, unless otherwise inconsistent with these By-Laws.

Section 9. Voting. At all meetings of the members, each member of records shall be entitled to one (1) vote. A vote may be cast either orally or in writing in person or by proxy. A "member of record" is a person who is a member in good standing of the Association as of the close of business on a date, selected by the Board of Directors, not less than forty (40) days nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of the meeting (the "record date"). When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of the holders of a majority of members present shall decide any questions brought before such meeting, unless the questions are ones upon which, by express provision of law or of the Association's Articles of Incorporation, a different vote is required, in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question.

Section 10. Matters Reserved to Membership Vote. The following matters shall be authorized only upon a vote "thereon" by the members at a meeting called to consider such matter:

1. An amendment to the Association's Articles of Incorporation;
2. The election of the Board of Directors; and
3. Any other matter which the Board of Directors, in their sole discretion, by resolution shall commit to a vote of the members.

ARTICLE V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. General Powers. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by its Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of directors shall be no fewer than three (3) and no more than twenty-five (25) and may be changed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall appoint a committee to nominate successor directors. The directors shall be elected at an annual meeting of the members, except as provided in Section 8 of this Article, and each director elected shall hold office until his successor is elected and qualified or until his earlier death, resignation or removal. Directors shall be residents of the United States of America and be members of the association.

Section 3. Regular Meetings. A regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held each year immediately after the annual meeting of the members of the Association for the purpose of electing officers and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. The regular annual meeting of directors shall be held without other notice than these By-Laws. The Board of Directors may provide by resolution the time and place, within or without the State of Missouri for the holding of additional regular meetings of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two (2) directors. All special meetings shall be held at the registered office of the Association unless otherwise agreed upon by a majority of the Board of Directors in attendance at the meeting.

Section 5. Notice. Notice of any special meeting of the Board of Directors and the business to be transacted shall be given at least five (5) days previously thereto by written notice delivered personally, by mail or through the internet to each director at his address shown on the records of the Association. If notice be given by mail, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the director. Any director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. The purpose of any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be specified in the notice of such meeting.

Section 6. Quorum. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors provided that if less than a majority of the directors are present at said meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

Section 7. Manner of Acting. The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, except where otherwise provided by law or these By-Laws.

Section 8. Vacancies. Vacancies created by the death, resignation, or removal of a director may be filled by a majority vote of the directors then in office though less than a quorum, and each director so chosen shall hold office until his successor is elected and qualified or until his earlier death, resignation or removal. A director may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by a vote of a majority of the remaining directors. If there are not directors in office, then an election of directors may be held in the manner provided by law. Newly created directorships shall be filled by election at an annual meeting or special meeting called for that purpose.

Section 9. Compensation. Directors as such shall not receive any stated salaries for their services, but by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum and expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. Nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any director from serving the Association in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor upon approval by the Board.

Section 10. Telephonic Participation in Meeting. The members of the Board of Directors, or of any committee designated by the Board of Directors, may participate in a meeting of the Board of Directors or committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment whereby all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a meeting in this manner shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

Section 11. Action by Written Consent. Any action which is required to be or may be taken at a meeting of the directors, or of any committee of the directors, may be taken without a meeting if consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken are signed by all of the members of the Board of Directors or of the committee as the case may be. The consents shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote at a meeting duly held. The Secretary shall file the consents with the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or of the committee as the case may be.

ARTICLE VI
OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The Officers of the Association shall be a President, one or more Vice Presidents (the number thereof to be determined by the Board of Directors), a Treasurer, a Secretary or combination thereof, and such other officers as may be elected in accordance with the provisions of this article. The Board of Directors may elect or appoint other officers, including an Executive Director, one or more Assistant Secretaries, and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the office of President.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The Officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors. If the election of Officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as convenient. Vacancies may be filled or new officers created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each Officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified.

Section 3. Removal. Any Officer or Agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association would be served thereby.

Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 5. President. The President of the Association shall be the principal executive officer of the Association. He shall supervise and conduct the affairs of the Association in such manner as will best accomplish the purposes set forth in the Articles of Incorporation of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Association members and the Board of Directors. He shall countersign all checks together with the Treasurer.

Section 6. Vice President. In the absence of the President, or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 7. Treasurer. The Treasurer or Assistant Treasurer shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Association; receive and give receipts for monies received by the Association from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the Association in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Article VIII of these By-Laws.

Section 8. Secretary. The Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Association shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws or as required by law; be custodian of the corporate records of the Association; see that the seal of the Association, if any, is affixed to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the Association under its seal, if any, is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws; keep a register of the post office address of each member which shall be furnished to the Secretary or Assistant Secretary by such member; and in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the Secretary or Assistant Secretary by the President or by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII COMMITTEES

Section 1. Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by the majority of the directors in office, may designate one or more committees, each of which shall consist of two (2) or more directors, which committees, to the extent provided in said resolution, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Association; but the designation of such committees and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual director, of any responsibility imposed upon it or him by law. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all committees of directors.

Section 2. Other Committees. Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Association may be designated by a resolution adopted by a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present. Except as otherwise provided in such resolution, members of each such committee shall be members of the Association, and the President of the Association shall appoint the members thereof. Any member thereof may be removed by the person or persons authorized to appoint such member whenever in their judgment the best interests of the Association will be served by such removal. One member of each committee shall be a director.

Section 3 Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of original appointments.

Section 4. Quorum. Unless provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.

Section 5. Rules. Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not inconsistent with these By-Laws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VIII CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND FUNDS

Section 1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize the officers or agents of the Association to enter into contracts or to execute and deliver documents in the name of and on behalf of the Association. Such authority shall be confined to specific instances. Such contracts may be for any purpose deemed by the Board of Directors to be appropriate, including the contracting with a third party for any or all administrative and other services and functions necessary for the Association to achieve its purpose.

Section 2. Checks, Drafts, Etc. All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Association shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Association and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by the resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer and countersigned by the President or Vice President of the Association.

Section 3. Deposits. All funds coming into possession of the Association shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Association in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

Section 4. Gifts. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Association any contributions, gifts, bequests, or device for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the Association.

Section 5. Loans. The Association may, upon authorization of the Board of Directors, from time to time accept or negotiate loans of financial assistance to be repaid at such time as the Association is reasonably able to repay.

Section 6. Vision Charities Fund. A Vision Charities Fund committee may be, by resolution adopted by the Board of Directors, established to select at least two vision related

charities annually for approval by the Board of Directors. The selected charities must be approved as Section 501(c)(3) IRS not-for-profit corporations. At any given time, the committee may recommend disbursements up to 90% of available monies in its charities fund. Monies distributed from the Association's Vision Charities Fund can only be to the benefit of the selected charities and contain the signature of two Directors of the Association.

ARTICLE IX
CERTIFICATES OF MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Certificates of Membership. The Board of Directors may provide for the issuance of certificates evidencing membership in the Association which shall be in such form as may be determined by the Board. Such certificates shall be signed by the President or Vice President and shall be sealed with the seal of the Association, if any. The name and address of each member and the date of issuance of the certificate shall be entered on the records of the Association. If any certificate shall become lost, mutilated or destroyed, a new certificate may be issued therefor upon such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may determine.

Section 2. Issuance of Certificates. When a member has applied for and is eligible for membership and has paid any initiation fee and dues that may then be required, a certificate of membership shall be issued and delivered to him by the Secretary, if the Board of Directors shall have provided for the issuance of certificates of membership under the provisions of Section 1 of this article.

ARTICLE X
BOOKS AND RECORDS

The Association shall keep correct and complete books and records of accounts and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its members, Board of Directors and committees having any of the authority of the Board of Directors, and shall keep at the registered or principal office a record giving the names and addresses of the members entitled to vote. All books and records of the Association may be inspected by any member, or his agent or attorney for any purpose at any reasonable time.

ARTICLE XI
DUES AND INITIATION FEE

Section 1. Annual Dues. The Board of Directors may determine from time to time the amount of annual dues payable to the Association by members of each class.

Section 2. Payment of Dues. Dues shall be payable in advance.

Section 3. Default and Termination of Membership. When any member of any class shall be in default in the payment of dues for a period of one month from the beginning of the period from which such dues became payable, such member shall be automatically dropped from membership unless the Board of Directors, in its discretion, extends the time for payment of dues.

Section 4. Initiation Fee. Each member may be required to pay, in addition to applicable dues, the amount of any initiation fee designated by the Board of Directors as a prerequisite to membership. The Board of Directors may provide that the initiation fee is waived for members who are part of a group where the sponsor pays a stated initiation fee on behalf of all group members.

ARTICLE XII
FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall begin the first day of January and end on the last day of December in each year.

ARTICLE XIII
SEAL

The Board of Directors may provide a corporate seal which shall be in the form of a circle and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the corporation and the words "Corporate Seal".

ARTICLE XIV
WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the General Not-For-Profit Corporation Law of Missouri under the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation or the By-Laws of the Association, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

ARTICLE XV
AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS

These By-Laws may be altered, amended or repealed and new By-Laws may be adopted by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the directors present at any regular meeting or any special meeting, provided that at least seven (7) days' written notice is given of intention to alter, amend or repeal or to adopt new By-Laws at such meeting.

ARTICLE XVI
INDEMNIFICATION

The Association shall provide for indemnification by the Association of any and all of its directors of officers or former directors or officers against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding, in which they or any of them are made parties, or a party, by reason of having been directors or officers of the Association, except in relation to matters as to which such director or officer or former director or officer shall be adjudged in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence or misconduct in the performance of duty and to such matters as shall be settled by agreement predicated on the existence of such liability for gross negligence or misconduct.

ARTICLE XVII
DISSOLUTION

The Association shall use its funds only to accomplish the objectives and purposes specified in these By-Laws, and no part of said funds shall inure, or be distributed, to the members of the Association. On dissolution of the Association any funds remaining shall be distributed to one or more regularly organized and qualified charitable, educational, scientific, or philanthropic organizations to be selected by the Board of Directors.